TOWN OF gf

Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

COUNCIL MINUTES SEPTEMBER 22, 2020, 6:30PM, SFD COMMUNITY CENTER

The meeting was called to order at 6:30pm by BJ Barnes. It was noted that attendance at the meeting
was closed to the public due to the pandemic and state-of-emergency declarations but was being live
streamed on the Town’s Facebook page.

The following were present:

Council Staff
BJ Barnes, Mayor Scott Whitaker, Town Manager
Tim Sessoms, Mayor Pro-tem Dee Hall, Finance Officer
Lynne Williams DeVaney Lance Heater, Town Clerk
John O’Day Chris York, Town Planner
Teresa Pegram
Reece Walker

It was noted that Town Attorney Bob Hornik was watching the live stream of the meeting and
would be available by phone.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Upon motion by DeVaney, seconded by O’Day and carried by a vote of 4-1 (Pegram opposed), the
meeting agenda was approved.

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR NEW TOWN HALL

Barnes stated that some citizens had suggested the renovation of an existing structure as an
alternative to building a new town hall; however, no prospective facility was a viable alternative.
Whitaker stated that the directive from Council’s retreat was to build a new town hall. An RFQ for
architectural services yielded 20 potential firms and a thorough vetting process resulted in a
recommendation discussed at the 9/8 meeting. Council directed negotiations with Creech &
Associates and the result was a draft contract and base proposal presented for Council’s approval in
the amount of $272,000.

Brent Green was present to represent Creech and answer questions from Council. In response to a
question from Barnes, Green stated that the proposal would serve to build a facility with a lifespan
of over 50 years and that he was confident the project could be completed within the total budget of
$3.5 million. In response to a question from DeVaney, Green stated that if Council requested changes
to the facility which increased the project cost by more than 5%, architectural fees would be
increased accordingly.

Whitaker stated that the contract was written using a “Construction Manager at Risk” (CMAR)
delivery method versus the traditional “Design-Bid-Build” approach. The CMAR method ensures
that the project cost would not exceed a guaranteed final price and would identify a construction
manager who would be paid a fee of 0.5% of project cost. Green stated that approximately 80% of
Creech'’s recent, similar projects utilized the CMAR approach and added it is a transparent,

Council: Mayor BJ Barnes, Mayor Pro-tem Tim Sessoms, Lynne Williams DeVaney, John O'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker Manager: Scott Whitaker e=—————



TOWN OF gf

Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

collaborative process that typically results in faster delivery. Barnes stated that Guilford County
used the CMAR method for the construction of its new jail and was now the predominant method
used by the County.

Pegram questioned who comprised the “leadership committee” mentioned in Creech’s proposal.
Whitaker responded that staff, Historical Committee chairman Gary Brown, and DeVaney had been
involved thus far with the process, but Council could define it as desired. In response to another
question from Pegram, Whitaker stated that there was $500,000 total in the FY2020-21 budget
allocated to architectural services and the start of construction, depending on timing. The proposed
contract is focused on a total project cost of $3.5 million. Whitaker stated that Council had decided at
its March special called budget meeting that the facility would be a one-story building of
approximately 9,000 square feet. In response to a question from O’Day, Green stated that
construction should take 8-10 months. Total time from beginning of design would be approximately
17 months. In response to a question from Pegram, Green stated that $3.5 million would include all
costs including site work and furnishings.

Pegram suggested the project should be delayed for a year due to the pandemic and voiced support
for having a referendum on the project, either as a bond referendum or a general question on
whether the facility should be built. Pegram made a motion to place a bond referendum or general
question on the November ballot. Hornik responded (by phone) that, unless Council wanted to issue
general obligation bonds to finance the facility, State law did not allow for this type of issue to be
placed on a referendum, adding that this involves a legislative decision for Council. Several Council
members stated there was no reason to issue bonds as the Town had the cash on hand to fund the
project. There was no second on Pegram’s motion. Walker expressed support for the CMAR
approach and made a motion to approve the contract. The motion was seconded by DeVaney and
carried by a vote of 4-1 (Pegram opposed).

Barnes declared a recess at 7:14pm.
The meeting was reconvened at 7:20pm.

SUMMERFIELD FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OPPORTUNITIES

David Couch, owner of Summerfield Farms, presented a conceptual plan for development of a large
portion of his properties in Summerfield. Couch stated his goal to bring a village style of
development and referred to the plan as his “Summerfield Farms Village Concept.”

In order to achieve that goal, there was a need to bring public water and sewer service to the
properties. He described his plan to provide water and sewer service from the City of Greensboro to
his properties as well as areas along the business corridor of US-220.

Couch proposed a special tax district which would apply only to the proposed village properties
and stated the plan involved a 25-year build-out and a trail system. He stated that neither the
Town's current nor the proposed Development Ordinance would provide the tools to implement the
Summerfield Comprehensive Plan.

—=—— Council: Mayor BJ Barnes, Mayor Pro-tem Tim Sessoms, Lynne Williams DeVaney, John O'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker Manager: Scott Whitaker e=—————



[OWN OF
5— . —— Town Hall: POB 970, 4117 Oak Ridge Road, Summerfield, NC 27358
UITLTLESS :
J ph: 336-643-8655 / fax: 336-643-8654 / www.summerfieldnc.gov

Couch presented several slides showing what could be developed under the current ordinance and
what could be done under the proposed village concept. He referred citizens to a website,
sffarmsvillage.com, which would provide further information and a forum to answer citizen
questions. He stated that further details would also be provided in public meetings.

Couch responded to questions from members of Council and stated that: 1) fire hydrants would be
provided for free; 2) the special tax district would only apply to village properties and that others
would only pay more if they wanted water or sewer services; and, 3) the proposal would require a
text amendment to the Development Ordinance in order to allow for a development agreement.

Upon motion by Sessoms, seconded by DeVaney and carried by a unanimous vote, the meeting was
adjourned at 8:24pm.

BJ Barnes, Mayor Lance G. Heater, Town Clerk

—=—— Council: Mayor BJ Barnes, Mayor Pro-tem Tim Sessoms, Lynne Williams DeVaney, John O'Day, Teresa Pegram, Reece Walker Manager: Scott Whitaker e=—————



